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RPS Bidders Conference 
 
Event Date: 03/17/2008 01:30 PM Pacific Daylight Time 
 
Questions & Answers at the Conference 
 

1) Can we get a list of pre-bid Conference Participants? (3/17/08) 
 

Yes.  We will post the list of those who signed up.  If anyone does not 
want their name published, please send us an e-mail to 
renewableRFO@pge.com by Thursday 3/27 to request removal of your 
name. 

 
2) Can you provide any information on the next all-source RFP?  Will 

renewable be a part of that solicitation? (3/17/08) 
 

The all-source RFO is anticipated to be issued by the end of March. 
 
3) Correction to slide that had bids due on Thursday, May 12th.   
 

May 12th is a MONDAY. (3/17/08) 
 
4) What is the total MW PG&E is seeking in this round? (i.e. what 

does the 1-2% of your load represent?) (3/17/08) 
 

That depends on the capacity factor of the various technologies.  1-2% of 
annual load is an energy volume measure.  In the protocol/green book, 
there is a table [Table III.1] that shows relationship of Capacity Factor to 
Contract Capacity Amounts (MW). 

 
5) Do solar project compete against other solar? Wind vs. wind? Etc? 

or, do all eligible renewable compete against each other? 
(3/17/08) 

 
All bids are evaluated and ranked together.  Projects do not compete at 
the technology level.  The technology characteristics influence the 
evaluation through the criteria discussed. 

 
6) Are the RFOs binding from the beginning?  May 12th? (3/17/08) 
 

Yes. 
 
7) How many MW in term of solar has PG&E realized so far? 

(3/17/08) 
 

PG&E has contracted for over 700 MW. 
 
8) How many solar MW does PG&E intend to buy in 2008? (3/17/08) 
 

That depends on the competitiveness of the solar bids compared to all 
other bids. 
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9) Can you explain super-peak, shoulder, night? (3/17/08) 
 

In the green book, page 29, [Table IX.2] the Time of Delivery (TOD) 
Periods are defined. 

 
10) What is your proforma economic carrying cost of a new CT? 

(3/17/08) 
 

We don’t give out that information, it is considered proprietary. 
 
11) If the Generation Interconnection Reform Process (GIRP) 

proceeds as the CAISO would like, many projects will be thrown 
out of the ISO queue.  How will this effect the RPS RFO schedule? 
(3/17/08) 

 
The GIRP is not finalized yet, however, eliminating the “idle” projects in 
the queue will stream line the interconnection process and give those 
“real” projects more hope to be successful. The GIRP will not affect the 
schedule of this current RFO. 

 
12) Successful bidders must complete the ISO Interconnection process 

– by when? (3/17/08) 
 

The ISO Interconnection process determines the interconnection facilities 
(or Direct Assignment Facilities) and Network facilities needed to 
interconnect and deliver the power from the generating plant to the 
customer load.  Therefore, it needs to be completed before the installation 
of such facilities.  The bidder may build the generating plant at anytime.  
The generating plant can not be interconnected with the system until all 
interconnection facilities and network upgrades have been installed.   

 
13) Why is it necessary to grant PG&E exclusive negotiating rights, 

once shortlisted? (This represents extreme risk to a project in case 
it does not go beyond the short list.) (3/17/08) 

 
It is a large commitment of time and resources by PG&E to negotiate 
these transactions, thus PG&E requests the counterparty make a serious 
commitment to the process by agreeing to an exclusivity period.   

 
14) What are the considerations for a shortlisted project to actually 

get a PPA? (3/17/08) 
 

PG&E will generally proceed with negotiations on shortlisted projects, 
although there can be priorities within the shortlist.  The number of 
shortlisted projects can be a multiple of what PG&E anticipates signing as 
contracts.  So ultimately getting a PPA depends on how the negotiations 
proceed and what other contracts are signed. 

 
15) If our project cannot secure firm transmission to the CAISO 

border, would PG&E consider ending the exclusive negotiation 
requirement? (3/17/08) 
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It would probably be the negotiations that would be terminated, not just 
the exclusive negotiation requirement. 

 
16) If an out of state project is relying on banking and shaping to 

meet the Deliverability Requirements, does it need to make an 
application with the CAISO?  Is the answer different if using a 
financial intermediary or PG&E for out of State Deliver?  Please 
address Section IV.E of RPS Solicitation Protocol that says out of 
state delivery is an option. (3/17/08) 

 
No. The project will need to coordinate with the relevant Transmission 
Provider for interconnection.  The answer is the same if using a financial 
intermediary.  How the project’s energy gets delivered to a CAISO import 
point (intermediary or PG&E) has no bearing. 

 
17) Will you consider doing PPAs where there is one price with 30% 

ITC and another price is 10% ITC? (3/17/08) 
 

Yes. 
 
18) Would you consider a delivery term security like SDG&E? 

$15/MWh x 2 yrs? (3/17/08) 
 

PG&E has presented its credit requirements in the Renewables Portfolio 
Standard 2008 Solicitation Protocol.  Offers which conform to PG&E’s 
credit requirements as outlined in the Solicitation Protocol will be 
considered serious offers.  PG&E will consider alternate proposals with 
different credit.  If the Delivery Term Security is below the applicable 
amount indicated in Table VII.1 on page 21 of the solicitation protocol, 
PG&E will assign less value to the Participant’s offer of credit.  The security 
(in forms and amounts) is intended to protect customers served by PG&E 
from suffering the undue burden of credit default associated with a 
supplier’s failure to perform its obligation to deliver product according to 
terms agreed to in the executed contract.   

 
The California electricity market place is very broad, and is served by a 
variety of entities.  Although their policies may vary from those of PG&E, it 
is PG&E’s policy not to comment on the merits and varied credit practices 
of other entities in the California electricity marketplace. 

 
19) Is PG&E willing to prefund network upgrades on the PG&E grid? 

(3/17/08) 
 

PG&E would consider it.  However, there is no PG&E corporate policy on 
pre-funding network upgrades.  Rather PG&E identifies multiple-purpose 
transmission projects, which can also facilitate renewable projects in its 
annual Grid Expansion Plan developed pursuant to the CAISO Tariff. 

 
20) Will you short list projects that have not yet obtained firm site 

control? (3/17/08) 
 

Yes.  Demonstration of the degree of site control is part of the viability 
evaluation.  But lacking firm site control is not necessarily a fatal flaw. 
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21) Why do the transmission studies take so long?  Can’t you add 

more people or contract it out? (3/17/08) 
 

Complex studies are necessary in order to ensure that the generator can 
be safely and reliably connected to the transmission grid. 

 
PG&E does retain contractors to perform the transmission studies when 
work load warrants it.  However, PG&E still needs to exercise due 
diligence to ensure that the studies would result in the safe and reliable 
operation of the electric grid. 

 
22) Can you provide the historic ratio of MWs bid versus MWs 

awarded? (3/17/08) 
 

No.  That is considered confidential. 
 
23) What is the historic range in bid price contracted, say last year’s 

RFO? (3/17/08) 
 

No.  That is considered confidential. 
 
24) What is the estimated benefit from PTC/ITC?  i.e. Bid Price with 

PTC/ITC vs. Bid Price without PTC/ITC. (3/17/08) 
 

It would be evaluated as two separate prices bid. The benefit would be 
based on how it was priced. 

 
25) What is the rough cost to the bidder of LGIP studies? (3/17/08) 
 

Based on our past experience- 
Interconnection Feasibility Study (IFS):  ~$30K - $40K 
Interconnection System Impact Study (ISIS): ~$50K - $60K 
Interconnection Facility Study (IFAS):  ~$70K - $80K 
For a total of ~$150 - $180K 

 
26) What is the cost of SGIP studies? 
 

It is a brand new process so we don’t know yet. 
 
27) What are the consequences that in the event of PTC expiration a 

project bid is above MPR? (3/17/08) 
 

No consequences as the MPR is not used in evaluation.  The MPR is only 
used to demonstrate whether the contract is above or below market when 
it is filed for Commission approval. 

 
28) Is there any disadvantage to being located outside PG&E’s service 

territory? (3/17/08) 
 

No, but if the delivery point is outside PG&E service territory we will 
consider the cost to deliver the power into PG&E’s service territory or 
alternate commercial arrangements to resell the energy.  If the delivery 
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point is out of state, we also take into account the risk of not being able to 
import the energy into California, as delivery to California is a requirement 
for a resource to be RPS eligible.  

 
29) Is the “green book” handout at the bidders’ conference available 

to participants on the telephone? (3/17/08) 
 

Yes.  All the sections of the green book are listed in the pge.com website 
for the 2008 RPS RFO. 

 
30) What is the name of the firm and individual(s) serving as 

Independent Evaluator? (3/17/08) 
 

We are still considering candidates and will have an IE under contract 
before May 12th. 

 
31) How does the new Single Contract Price relate to the MPR?  And 

will the MPR be the MPR determined in 2007 or the MPR to be 
determined in Q2 2008? (3/17/08) 

 
The MPR for this solicitation will be the 2008 MPR.  We expect the CPUC to 
adopt a 2008 MPR in Q2 or Q3 of this year.  The MPR is typically 
determined after shortlisting and does not effect evaluation. 

 
32) Does PG&E have an 8760 hr template for aggregating energy by 

TOD periods that can be furnished to potential bidders? (3/17/08) 
 

No. 
 
33) If a project bids into both PG&E and SDG&E, and if it is shortlisted 

by PG&E, it has five days to determine whether it will stay on the 
short list.  But SDG&E will not notify shortlisted bidders until July 
24, long after the five-day window.  Is there any way this can be 
coordinated more closely? (3/17/08) 

 
PG&E has researched the schedules of SDG&E, SCE and PG&E.  PG&E and 
SCE have similar schedules, while SDG&E’s differs.  PG&E has consulted 
the CPUC on this matter and may post updated information for bidders if 
needed.  

 
34) If it takes 1-2 years for the LGIP, how are the eventual 

interconnections costs considered in the PPA? (3/17/08) 
 

PG&E recognizes that not all generation projects would have completed 
the CAISO Interconnection process at the time of RPS RFO bid submittal.  
The RPS protocol provides that the Transmission Ranking Cost (Table X.1 
in the green book) be used for bid evaluation of the generation projects 
that have not completed the CAISO Interconnection Process.     

 
35) Will you consider projects wherein the fuel supply (bio-fuel in this 

case) is not provided by the bidder? (3/17/08) 
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For a PSA we would consider it, but for the PPA we expect that the bid 
price is an all-in price, including fuel. 

 
36) Would you consider straight equipment offer or you also want the 

EPC portion included in the offer? (3/17/08) 
 

PG&E’s preference is for offers that conform to our protocol (Section III)--
PPAs with buyout option, turnkey PSAs or sites for development.    We 
would consider a proposal for acquisition of equipment in conjunction with 
an offer for Development Site ownership.  We would also consider a 
proposal for acquisition of equipment alone.    

 
37) How many MW of bio-fuel based power generation excluding bio-

mass like landfill, digester gas do you currently have in your 
portfolio? (3/17/08) 

 
12% of PG&E's Energy is California Renewable.  Biogas (primarily landfill 
gas) makes up about 2% of this 12%, or roughly 0.24% of the total.   

 
38) I am participating in the bidders’ conference via the web and 

would like to get a copy of the slides from today’s presentation.  I 
did not see them online.  Are they available? (3/17/08) 

 
The slides have been posted on PG&E’s website. 

 
Questions from the audience: 

 
39) I have a Strategic Sourcing contract with PG&E and am currently 

remediating a site.  Am I conflicted out of using these site to bid 
in? (3/17/08) 

 
Without additional information, we are not in a position to give a definitive 
answer.  We can determine if there is a conflict after we receive 
information regarding whether you have bid into another solicitation or 
RFO and the type of contract you have. 

 
40) Why can’t I use a performance or surety bond to meet my credit 

posting requirements so that I don’t have to tie up my capital?  I 
am a small company. (3/17/08) 

 
PG&E’s credit policy and requirements will continue to be determined 
based on its proprietary and internal assessment of risk.  PG&E has 
identified for bidders, the terms of its credit requirements in the 
Renewables Portfolio Standard 2008 Solicitation Protocol. Offers which 
conform to PG&E’s credit requirements as outlined in the Solicitation 
Protocol will be considered serious offers.  PG&E will consider alternate 
proposals with different credit.  If the Performance Assurance is below the 
applicable amount indicated in Table VII.1 on page 21 of the solicitation 
protocol, PG&E will assign less value to the Participant’s offer of credit.   

 
PG&E is a strong supporter of small business and WMDV enterprises.  
PG&E has a long and proud history of supporting and partnering with 
these enterprises and highly respects those managers whose efforts 
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consistently demonstrate creativity, innovation and strength in meeting 
business opportunities.  The security (in forms and amounts) required of 
bidders is intended to protect the customer base served by PG&E from 
suffering the undue burden of credit risk/default associated with supplier 
performance and product delivery failure under its agreed contract terms.  
We greatly look forward to providing a stable and cost competitive source 
of renewable power to the California market place and look forward to 
constructive business relationships with bidders whose commitment to this 
mutual goal can be demonstrated by providing security in the forms and 
amounts outlined by PG&E as acceptable 

 
41) What weight does PG&E place on Supplier Diversity?  (3/17/08) 
 

That is one of the qualitative factors scored during the evaluation that 
carries through the entire process. 

 
42) A developer has a wind project connecting into SCE.  What penalty 

is added to bring the power into PG&E Service Territory? 
(3/17/08) 

 
There is no penalty.  PG&E evaluates the cost of bringing power to its 
service territory, or assesses the value of the energy at the delivery point.  
The lower of the relevant Transmission Ranking (TRCR) costs or 
Alternative Commercial Arrangement (remarketing the energy, swaps to 
cover the cost to bring power to PG&E service territory, or anticipated cost 
of as-available transmission) is used as the transmission adder, p. 25. 

 
43) What can a small project less that 1.5 MW do? (3/17/08) 
 

There is a new process, standard tariff on the PG&E website where you 
can basically sign-up for up to 20 years. 

 
44) Does the 1.5 MW contract require the generator be customer owned?  

(3/17/08) 
 

PG&E is clarifying the eligibility rules with CPUC staff and will update 
potential bidders shortly. 

 
45) What is the flexibility on change of on-line date? (3/17/08) 
 

With respect to coordination of the generation project on-line date with 
the Interconnection study: Change of online date during the 
Interconnection study will trigger a re-study. After the study is completed, 
a signed interconnection agreement (LGIA or SGIA) will include the online 
date.  This date can be changed for up to 3 year.  Changes beyond 3 
years may trigger re-study. 

 
However, with respect to the PPA, PG&E requires the seller to commit to a 
guaranteed online date. Thus, PG&E cautions bidders to select an online 
date that it believes it can meet. 

 
46) What is the current MPR? (3/17/08) 
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For 2008 it will not be out until after shortlisting.  For 2007 the MPR 
ranges from approximately $90-100/MWh depending on the contract start 
date and term.    

 
47) But you are buying power right now.  What are you paying? 

(3/17/08) 
 

If you are asking about spot purchases, the ISO day ahead price is a good 
proxy for our short term cost.  For longer term purchases, there are 
forward markets with different prices.  So for RPS bids, our valuation of 
cost vs. value is based on proprietary forward curves. 

 
48) Where do I find the “good” places to connect that would not 

trigger the transmission cost adder? (3/17/08) 
 

Look for Clusters that have available transmission capacity for potential 
generation additions with no or low “other transmission proxy upgrade” 
costs in the Transmission Ranking Cost Table (Table X.1 in the green 
book). 

 


